
 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, April 14, 2015 

 

Present: Chairman Bowles, Selectman Krieger and Selectman Ives. 

Also present: Police Chief/Code Enforcement Officer Bob Fiske, Fire Chief Rick Wright, 

Stan Prescott from the Planning Board and Dave Powelson from the Zoning Board.  

 

I. Selectman Krieger moved to approve the Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes of Tuesday, April 7, 

2015 as written.  Seconded by Selectman Ives.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 

 

II. Chairman Bowles opened the Board of Permit.  

a. Chairman Bowles said there are two businesses in town that were granted approvals and 

it seems they are both operating outside of what they were approved for. He said he 

would like to have a discussion to see what, if anything needs to be done.  

b. Chairman Bowles said the first is the trailer sales on the Mossman property on Route 

106. He said the approval was for 30 trailers and any expansion beyond that would 

require them to come back in to see the Planning Board. Chairman Bowles said it is his 

belief that they are over the thirty trailers. He said he has had a couple of residents speak 

to him about their concerns with trucks and trailers backing out into 106.  He said he has 

also witnessed it himself.  Chairman Bowles said maybe Mr. Mossman needs to go back 

in with a new plan and provide better parking. Stan Prescott stated that the approval 

speaks for itself, there can’t be more than 30 trailers; there is many more than 30 and 

they are not parked according to the plan. Chief Wright said he witnessed a tractor trailer 

shut the road down to back in there and said it certainly is a hazardous situation. 

Chairman Bowles said he does not want to cause problems; he wants to see the business 

thrive.  He said he understands that people coming in to buy trailers from out of state are 

using other businesses in town. He just wants to see it addressed before it becomes a 

safety hazard. Chairman Bowles suggested that they come in to the Planning Board and 

make a few changes before anything happens. Chairman Bowles suggested that they 

look into using the driveway on Mudgett Hill Road. Selectman Ives said at minimum 

they need to go talk to the Planning Board. Mr. Prescott said he has no problem with the 

business but they have gone beyond the scope of what was approved. Chief Fiske said 

that the business has progressed better than anticipated, he knows he’s over and he’s 

looking at purchasing a larger piece of property further north on 106. Mr. Prescott said 

that he would like to see Mr. Mossman come to the Planning Board so they can discuss 

the site plan even if the trailers leave and he rents to someone else. Selectman Ives 

agreed that Mr. Mossman should come in. Chairman Bowles said Mr. Mossman will be 

contacted to see if he can attend the Planning Board meeting on Thursday for a 

discussion. 

c. Chairman Bowles said the other discussion is about the Chainsaw Doctor at Rhoads 

Motorsports on the corner of Shaker Road and Route 106.  He explained that the 

approval was for the continued use of motorsport sales and an inspection station; any 

change to this would require a meeting with the Planning Board. Chairman Bowles said 

there has been parking issues there in the past and now there are two more employee 

parking spots. He asked if the Board of Permit sees the need for Mr. Rhoads to see the 

Planning Board. Selectman Krieger asked if this was going to have junk piled up out 

back like there was at Rymes.  He said if he owned the store next door he’d be a little 



 

Page 2 of 5 

 

upset.  Chief Fiske said it hasn’t thus far. He said there is no parking on the backside, no 

parking on the south side so no place for outside storage.  Chief Wright asked if the 

inside is basically the same or is the issue mostly the parking.  Chairman Bowles said he 

doesn’t know because the approval is for motorsports sale and inspection and is not sure 

how small engine repair falls into that.  Mr. Prescott said the approval for the use of the 

building and the area around it has been expanded beyond its intent. Selectman Krieger 

asked if he is still doing small engine repairs. Chief Fiske said rototillers, snow blowers, 

chainsaws; that type of thing.  Mr. Powelson said if they’ve added these items then it’s 

time to take another look at it and make sure the parking is up to snuff. Selectman 

Krieger suggested that Mr. Rhoads be asked to come in and get it straightened out. The 

Board agreed that Mr. Rhoads will be asked to attend the Planning Board meeting 

Thursday for a discussion.  

d. Chairman Bowles recognized Mark Akerstrom owner of Central NH Trailers from the 

audience. Selectman Krieger explained that they already discussed the trailer sales and 

they are going to ask Mr. Mossman to attend the Planning Board meeting to review the 

plan for that lot. Mr. Akerstrom said they do at times fluctuate to above the 30 trailer 

limit. He explained that the business has grown more than expected in the last two years; 

they are working on an alternative plan which might mean staying there or moving to 

another lot.  Mr. Akerstrom said something will be happening in the next 6-8 months. 

Chairman Bowles said that they would like to see Mr. Mossman and Mr. Akerstrom at 

the Planning Board meeting this Thursday at 7:00 pm for a discussion. 

e. Chairman Bowles stated that there is a resident that would like to speak to the Board of 

Permit for five minutes. The Board agreed. Chairman Bowles recognized Mike Harris 

from the audience. Mr. Harris submitted a paper for the record; he said he would 

summarize the paper. He explained that he has repeatedly expressed his issues with the 

town and NHMS, especially night racing.  Chairman Bowles thanked Mr. Harris and 

stated that the Board would take Mr. Harris’ comments under advisement. 

f. Chairman Bowles asked Chief Fiske if there were any issues or anything to discuss 

before the Board signed the Business Permit for the July 2015 NASCAR Race event.  

Mr. Fiske stated no, there were not. 

 

Chairman Bowles closed the Board of Permit.  

 

III. The Board met with members of the Union Cemetery Association regarding the Union 

Cemetery. 

a. Stanley Prescott discussed the option of the Selectmen accepting the cemetery based on 

the articles voted on and passed at Town Meetings throughout the years.  Chairman 

Bowles stated that the Selectmen could accept the cemetery at a public hearing, during a 

regularly scheduled Selectmen’s Meeting.  Mr. Prescott discussed the issues with the 

fence that needs repair or removal and a tree at the cemetery that needed cutting or 

removal.  Chairman Bowles asked if the Association had the funds to do the work of 

fixing the fence.  Mr. Prescott stated that he did not feel as though there was enough 

money for the project as they only have approximately $3,500 in working capital.  

Chairman Bowles said that possibly a few of the highway employees and some of the 

Cemetery Trustees could get together and work on taking care of the cleanup of the tree 

at the cemetery and to patch the fence if possible or if not, to take down sections for 

now.  Chairman Bowles will set up a meeting to look at the project and will let the 



 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Cemetery Trustees know the date and time as soon as he had it.  The Board thanked the 

Cemetery Trustees for their time. 

 

IV. The Board met with Fire Chief Rick Wright. 

a. Chief Wright discussed the candidates for filling the vacant full-time ambulance 

position.  He stated that he, Deputy Chief Bill Lake, and Selectman Ives met with the 

candidates. There is one candidate that they are interested in and discussed a waiver 

needed in order to continue the hiring process.  Selectman Krieger will provide a draft 

waiver for suggested wording for Chief Wright.   

b. Chief Wright advised the Board of the Driver Safety class being held on Monday, April 

20, 2015 at 6:30 PM at Station 1.  He stated that other town agencies could attend this 

training.  Selectman Ives said that there might be some highway department employees 

interested in attending this training.   

c. Chief Wright stated that the first training for the seven candidates for drivers of the new 

ladder truck would be on Sunday, April 19, 2015.  He went on to say that it will take a 

few weeks to get the truck in service as it needs to be fitted with radios, equipment, and 

lettering.  Discussion began regarding George Cooper, employee of the highway 

department joining the department.  

d. Chief Wright discussed the Boy Scout Jamboree to be held in October at NHMS.  He 

indicated that the forestry truck would be at the track each night of the event.   

e. Chief Wright advised the Board that the 1-ton truck did not pass inspection and he is in 

the process of obtaining estimates for repairs. 

f. Chief Wright advised the Board that the Loudon Fire Association has agreed to purchase 

vehicle stabilization equipment and to donate it to the Loudon Fire Department.  The 

funds to pay for this purchase are from donations the Association have received in the 

past, which will be combined with a large donation received recently from a family that 

had a fire that occurred on March 6, 2015.  Chief Wright shared his appreciation of the 

donation to the department of the equipment and for the donations received from 

individuals in town.   

g. Selectman Ives suggested that Chief Wright have the candidate chosen for the vacant 

position to meet with the Selectmen once the details have been worked out.  He also 

stated that he felt it would be a benefit to have George Cooper joining the department, as 

it would be an asset to have someone certified in town during the work week to drive the 

ladder truck if needed.   

h. Chief Wright was asked about the water damage at the station.  Chief Wright said he 

would find someone to do this type of work. 

i. Chief Wright was asked if he had any issues or concerns with Mr. Rhoads’ business.  

Chief Wright said he would look at the requirements for gas storage tanks.  

 

V. The Board met with The Supervisors of the Checklist Marjorie Schoonmaker and Tracy 

Huckins to discuss their request to purchase three laptop computers to use for elections and 

entering voter registration information throughout the year.  

a. The Board asked what the Supervisors of the Checklist needed these laptop computers 

for and where they would be stored.  Marge Schoonmaker stated they would be using the 

laptops to enter voter registrations, to scan in information after elections, etc.  She stated 

that she and Tracy Huckins would each have one laptop at their own homes and the third 

laptop, which would be used by Supervisor Francine Clave, would remain at the Town 



 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Office during most of the year and used typically during elections.  Both Ms. 

Schoonmaker and Mrs. Huckins stated that they had been utilizing their personal 

computers to do the work at home and have concerns with viruses and such.  They felt 

that having the laptops would be a safer solution.  Discussion began regarding the 

current cost of internet service at the Town Hall being $40.00 per month that it is only 

utilized a few times of year, and is very slow.  Ms. Schoonmaker and Mrs. Huckins 

discussed the possibility of using a “hotspot” and the cost would be much lower and 

might be faster than the current internet speed.  The Board discussed the need to be sure 

the laptops were used for their intended purpose and stated that they would require 

written agreements with each person taking a computer out of the office as a standard 

procedure.  Selectman Krieger questioned if the laptops that are being proposed are 

going to be sufficient for the next few years as the cost per computer is low.  Ms. 

Schoonmaker indicated that based on what the laptops will be used for, they would be 

sufficient for an extended period of time.  Internet options with regard to Wi-Fi were 

discussed and since the Selectmen are checking into internet options for the highway 

garage, the option of the Wi-Fi for the Supervisors of the Checklist use at Town Hall 

will be looked at as well.  The Board thanked Ms. Schoonmaker and Mrs. Huckins for 

their time. 

 

VI. The Board met with Tom Blanchette of NHMS. 

a. Mr. Blanchette explained that the NH Aviation Support Facility and NH Army National 

Guard have approached NHMS to use the track property to train using drones.  He stated 

that they are low noise machines and are not operated by fuels but by battery.  Mr. 

Blanchette explained the details of the contract.  The Board stated their concerns would 

be that the equipment is only flown on track property, not flown at nighttime, and does 

not adversely impact residents.  Mr. Blanchette stated he felt that the training appears to 

be such that they are only going to fly drones within their line of sight and therefore, 

does not appear to be veering off track property.  The Board asked if someone from the 

organization making the request could come to meet with the Selectmen during one of 

their regular meetings to answer a few questions.  Mr. Blanchette stated that he would 

get in touch with his contact and let the Selectmen know what he finds out. 

b. Mr. Blanchard stated that NHMS is entertaining the idea of having Snow Bowl II next 

winter.  He stated that NHMS has been approached by East Coast Snow Cross to host 

the event and they are tentatively looking to have it at the end of January, beginning of 

February, next year.  The last time they held this type of event was 2010.  Selectman 

Krieger stated that he felt this idea should be reviewed by the town attorney to be sure 

that it is not scheduled during the regular season.  Selectman Ives said he felt the Board 

had this event reviewed by town council last time the event took place.  Mr. Blanchette 

discussed the possibility of moving this event to the infield and utilizing the grandstands 

for viewing.  The Board asked for a formalized plan to be able to have reviewed by the 

attorney to be sure no covenants are being broken.  Mr. Blanchette will forward a plan to 

the Board as soon as one is available.   

 

VII. The Board began their review of weekly correspondence. 

a. The Board received a letter from Governor Maggie Hassan regarding Warrant Article 

#7, School Funding. 

b. The Board received TDS Cable and TV customer rates. 



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

c. The Board received HealthTrust Information for review. 

 

VIII. The Board received the following dates and reminders. 

a. Wednesday and Thursday, April 15-16, Chief Wright will be going to NJ to pick up the 

new ladder truck. 

b. Thursday, April 16 at 7:00 pm is the Planning Board Meeting. 

 

IX. Selectman Ives stated that the Board had been in contact with Architect Cindy Lewis 

regarding the progress of the new town office building.  It appears that the hold up with 

moving forward is an issue with getting information from the engineer.  The Board will 

continue trying to get this to move forward. 

 

X. Chairman Bowles stated that the Selectmen have hired Lance Houle as the new Road Agent, 

and he started this week. 

 

XI. Selectman Krieger moved to adjourn at 7:20 p.m. Seconded by Selectman Ives.  All in favor.  

Motion carried.  

 

 

LOUDON BOARD OF SELECTMEN  

 

_________________________________  

Dustin J. Bowles, Chairman 

 

_________________________________  

Robert P. Krieger, Selectman 

 

_________________________________  

Steven R. Ives, Selectman  

 


